[image: ]



ADDENDUM NO. 4


RFP 25-14 YCCD Unarmed Security Services
Date: 02/25/2026

Date:  February 9, 2026	


Clarifications:
1. Question:  Is there a preference for make/model or fuel type for the vehicles, specifically is preference of either an SUV or Sedan?
Answer:  The District is not making any preference regarding the make/model or fuel type for the guard vehicles or any preference between SUV or Sedan. 
2. Question:  Does fuel need to be accounted for in the rate for a vehicle, or can fuel be billed as incurred?
Answer:  The vehicle fuel, maintenance, registration, emissions, and other vehicle related costs are all to be included in the rate for the guard vehicles. 
3. Question: If an Electric Vehicle (EV) or Hybrid (PHEV) is used: 
a. Is there charging available at each location?
1. Answer: There are not any charging stations at any of the College locations. 
b. If so, what are the fees for charging?
1. Answer: Not applicable
c. Would EV charging granted to the vendor at no cost?
1. Answer: Not applicable on campus locations. If guard vehicles are charged off campus, then the cost of these charges need to be planned as part of the vehicles rate charge and not as an additional charge later. 
4. Question: Would YCCD consider alternative vehicles (Golf carts, etc.) if there are significant cost savings?
Answer: No. Please include security vehicles in very good condition with a professional fixed light bar on top and the Firm’s logo and identifying logo, name, and security services on the vehicle. 
 
5. Question:  Which Holidays does YCCD expect to pay/bill at holiday rates (is the number greater than 7)?
Answer: Typically, this includes all State and Federal holidays. This does NOT apply to all Yuba Community College District holidays as determined by the Board.  Please list which holidays will be paid at holiday rates and what the rates will be for security guard services.  
6. Question: Is there information available regarding what a modified holiday coverage schedule would be for the specific locations?
Answer: For the purposes of this RFP, please include normally scheduled coverage for the day the holiday falls on and for each College campus location.  For example, if a holiday falls on a Saturday and the College location does not normally have security guards scheduled for Saturdays, then holiday pay would not be paid for this College campus location.  If however, the College campus location does regularly have a security guard on shift per the shift hours in the Appendix A Bid Form on the Saturday that is a holiday, then, yes, holiday pay would need to be paid.  
7. Question:  Is there a list of dates with “No Coverage” due to the campus(es) being closed?
Answer: No, there is no such list.  Please bid the hours in the Appendix A form in Addendum No. 3 for each location.  
8. Question: Does any campus’ calendar deviate from the published YCCD Academic Calendar?
Answer: Please refer to the YCCD Academic Calendars for all College campus locations when putting your proposal together. There may be some subtle differences later that can be negotiated on a case by case basis, depending on events or other factors. For the purpose of this RFP, just bid the hours as noted in the RFP and per Addendum No. 3 Appendix A, Bid Form. 
9. Question: Are electronic or pasted signatures acceptable, or are only original wet signatures accepted for the cover letter?
Answer: Yes, electronic or pasted signatures are acceptable for the cover letter and the originally signed copy of the proposal. Please also include a flash drive with the originally signed copy of the proposal. Please also email the proposal to David Willis, email: dwillis@yccd.edu

10. Question:  On page 15 of the RFP, in the table for the Proposal Section under point 3 (Narrative), what kind of information is the Yuba Community College District looking for in this section?
Answer: Please disregard point 3, “Narrative” as a requirement for this RFP.
11. Question: When responding to Appendices A through I, should we retain the instructions and questions in their original format and provide our responses below each question, or should we remove the questions while ensuring that our content addresses all the requirements listed in these appendices?
Answer: Yes, maintain the original format that is shown in the RFP Appendices A through I. 
12. Question: Who is the current incumbent for the District, and what are their rates?
Answer: Bravo Security currently provides Unarmed Security Services for the District. The rates are not material for this RFP proposal process. Please generate your own security guard rates that provide the services as described in this RFP and the published Addendums.  
13. Question:  Evaluation Criteria
Could the District please clarify the relative weighting between technical qualifications and total cost under the Best Value evaluation process?
Answer: Please refer to the attached Exhibit A.
14. Question: Supervisor Check-Ins
Regarding the required two-hour supervisor check-ins, is the expectation that supervisors be physically present on campus for each verification, or would documented remote verification be acceptable during certain shifts?
Answer: Per section 2.3, item no. 18 the Security Guard Firm Supervisor can use a remote verification that is documented to verify the working status of the security guards. If the Security Guard Firm Supervisor falsifies this documentation information, and the District “discovers” that this is the case based on field on campus observations or camera video at the time of the documentation, then, this would be a serious matter that would need to be resolved by the Security Firm by possibly replacing the Security Guard Firm Supervisor at the discretion of the District. On campus Security Guard Services Firm random “spot checks” are always a good idea to verify employee performance is meeting service expectations. The District does expect that the Security Services Firm Supervisors will conduct randomly scheduled “spot checks” at least every two weeks or as needed due to reports or other concerns from the College or District.  
15. Question: Vehicle Deployment & Pricing Structure
For the Security Firm Vehicle line items in Appendix A, should pricing reflect one primary dedicated vehicle per campus, or does the District anticipate multiple vehicles during overlapping coverage periods at certain locations (such as Yuba College)? We want to ensure our vehicle costs are structured appropriately and consistent with operational expectations.
Answer: Thank you for asking this question. Only one vehicle per College campus location is expected to be included in the proposal per the updated Appendix A Bid form in Addendum No. 3. 
16. Question: Is it required that we use the District’s provided cost sheet exclusively, or are we permitted to attach a more detailed pricing index in addition to (or in place of) the cost sheet to further explain our rate structure?
Answer: Yes, use the updated Appendix A Bid Form that is in Addendum no. 3.  A more detailed cost sheet can however be attached and follow the Bid Form to better explain what is included in the cost units per item. 
17. Question: Who is the current incumbent? 

Answer: Bravo Security

18. Question: Is there a reason for the recent change to the unburdened hourly rate from $22/hour to $18/hour when it was shared during the pre-bid meeting that quality was key with security personnel? 

Answer: Yes, budget constraints. 

19. Question: What are the current bill rates being paid for this service today? 

Answer: That is not material for this RFP bidding process. 

20. Question:  Is there a make & model preference for vehicles? 

Answer: No. The vehicles should not be older than 15 years old and shall be in well maintained condition without any visible dents or damage.  The paint shall be in very good condition. 

21. Question:  What is the amount of mileage driven by the vehicle per month at each location? 

Answer: This is not information that can be provided. Each Firm shall estimate this value based on the size of the campus locations and the requirements of the RFP. 

22. Question:  For pricing vehicles, does the District want the cost of the vehicle built into the rate or itemized as a Direct Billed amount, ex. Monthly rate per vehicle? 

Answer:  Please use the updated Appendix A Bid Form in Addendum no. 3.

23. Question: What is the preferred uniform type/style? 

Answer:  Long sleeve shirts and long pants, belt with selective security tools as listed in the RFP and typical for this service, multi-season jacket.  The uniform requirements are described in the RFP. 

24. Question: How are security officers relieved when taking required Rest and Meal Breaks? 

Answer: They are not relieved. If they are on campus when there is a sworn officer on duty, they can coordinate with the officer and share information. 

25. Question: Can a contractor provide their guards with a company issue cell phone that will be used to maintain regular communication with designated staff when necessary? 

Answer: Yes. This is a requirement of the RFP. 

26. Question:  Our company maintains insurance limits that are commensurate with our size and scope of operations. The “minimum” or “not less than” language requirement may appear facially fair, but in effect it compels big firms to provide much larger amounts of insurance. Although each bidder may offer the specified insurance coverage, in the case of a large bidder, The District would be getting access to tens of millions more insurance than it would from other smaller bidders. Such a result is unfair. That requirement also effectively precludes our company from accessing any portion of our insurance to satisfy other claims from time to time. Our company is open to negotiating the limits set forth in the agreement for the removal of that language. Can the words “minimum” and “not less than” be removed from the Insurance Requirements? 

Answer:  No. The insurance requirements are as stated in the RFP. If the Firm wants to provide higher coverage, that is also okay. 

27. Question: What are the indemnification terms? 

Answer:  The indemnification terms are described in the District Agreement for Services that is in the link shared in Appendix E of the RFP. 

28. Question: What are the main security challenges the District is experiencing at the sites? 

Answer: Typical with any other College Campus.  This District is rural but we still get some members of the homeless population visiting the campus’s, open campuses also attract people at night and on the weekends that sometimes do cause theft and vandalism. 

29. Question: Is employee parking available to the contractor’s employees? If so, is there a fee associated with parking? 

Answer: Yes, the parking will be free for this RFP service provider. 

30. Question:  Does the District have a preference to retain incumbent employees that are in good standing and meet the hiring criteria of the Proposer? 

Answer: The District does not have any preference for this option. 

31. Question: It is noted in the RFP that handcuffs are required. Is that correct? Under what circumstances would security personnel need to detain, use physical intervention or make a citizen’s arrest during their shift? 

Answer: Yes, you would know better the answer to this question. 

32. Question: What is the District’s Use of Force Policy? 

Answer: The District does not have a Use of Force Policy. 

33. Question: Each year, how often does security need to use physical intervention and/or detainment? 
Has there ever been an injury to security personnel when using physical intervention and/or detainment, and if so, how often in the last year? 

	Answer: Not often but it is a possible service that is requested. Likely not more than 2 or 3 times annually. There has never been an injury to a security guard performing these services at the District. 

34. Question: Is there any equipment provided by the District? 

Answer: No.

35. Question: Is the District currently using any technology for incident reports, Officer/Guard Tracking/GPS? 
If so, what technology is currently being used for reporting and tracking of officers? 

Answer: No. 

36. Question: It is noted in the RFP that a Supervisor is to check all locations every two (2) hours. Would this be a roving supervisor and is it doable with the distance between campuses, especially Lake County campus? 

Answer: See question 14. 

37. Question: If the Supervisor is a roving supervisor, do bidders need to add a 5th vehicle to their pricing? 

Answer: Not required. 

38. Question: Can the contractor bill fuel and maintenance for vehicles as “Billed as Incurred”? 

Answer: No. 

39. Question: In addition to the supervisor, is a dedicated Account Manager required to be priced in for this bid? If so, is the Account Manager a non-billable position? Is this position salaried? 

Answer:  Your call.  The Bid Form does have a line item for Administrative costs for each location. 

40. Question: Would the District consider rate adjustments if unforeseen changes in regulations or union status occur that have an impact on vendor’s costs? 

Answer: Yes, only for regulatory changes that impact the specific scope of work included in this RFP. 

41. Question: Are there restroom facilities in close proximity to all of the posts? 

Answer: Yes 

42. Question: For inclement weather, is there shelter available for the security professionals? 

Answer: Yes.

43. Question: It is noted on Page 5 of the RFP that the Security Personnel are to enforce parking and support with parking permit issuance. Is security required to issue parking citations? If so, who supplies the parking citations, supplies, chalk, etc.? 

Answer:  The District will provide the parking citations. 

44. Question: It is noted on Page 7 of the RFP that “On-duty personnel will carry a District provided or Contractor provided cell phone and two-way radio to be used for communication…”  Can the District confirm what communication device they will provide the contractor and what the contractor is responsible for providing? 
Answer: The Security Services Firm shall provide a company cell phone for communication. All required software and APPs shall be on the cell phone. 

45. Question: It is noted on Page 7 of the RFP that Security personnel must wear a security belt with a flashlight, “NIGHTSTICK”, etc. Are Security personnel required to carry batons? If so, Baton Training must be a training requirement in the RFP, which it’s currently not listed. Please confirm and under what circumstance would a security professional be required to use a Baton in a school campus environment? 

Answer: Please include what is noted in the RFP. Possibly for an aggressive dog is one example. 

46. Question: If a Baton is required, is Pepper Spray an acceptable replacement? 

Answer: Please provide what is included in the RFP. Pepper Spray could be considered as a replacement if approved later by the District.

47. Question: On Appendix A: Proposal Base Bid Form, should bidders total every column (Sub-Total and Total Costs) for even the Unburdened Hourly Rate and Burdened Hourly rate columns? 

Answer:  Please follow the revised bid Form in Addendum 3.  

48. Question: Does the District want bidders to provide their OT Rate in the “Other” row? 

Answer:  Please do share the overtime rates and describe how overtime is applied per the RFP. 

49. Question: It is noted on page 25 that in addition to the bidders License No., it also asks for “Class”. What is the District asking for there? 

Answer: Please disregard this request for “class”. 

50. Question: How many references are required? Five (5) or ten (10)? 

Answer: 10 references with up to date contact information are required. 

51. Question: Do the references need to be California clients? 

Answer: Yes

52. Question: Does SB 1626 also cover SB 390 Training? 

Answer: I’m not sure. 



53. Question: Please clarify question 29.E regarding whether the Security Firm has experience with processing and generating annual Cleary Act Reports in California. Typically, at College and University institutions, the security contractor observes and reports incidents. From there, they provide the institution incident report information for the institution to generate and process the annual Cleary Act Report, not the security contractor. Does the District have a Cleary coordinator? 

Answer: The District requires that the Security Firm to document and provide all information needed for the Clery Act report. This RFP requires that the Security Firm also generate the Clery Act report, working with the District Director of Safety and Risk Management. The District Director of Safety and Risk Management is the Clery Act Report coordinator. 

 



Exhibit A:  Proposal Evaluation Form

Firm Name:                                                                                            .

Evaluation Criteria:

1. Firm Statement of Qualifications (Appendix B):			                30 Points   
This item includes the overall Statement of Qualifications scoring, references, interview, and services approach and content.
Firms that are not determined to be qualified will not have their proposals considered. 
2. Fee Proposal:									    35 Points   
Per the updated Appendix A Bid Form in Addendum no. 3, and the completion of the fees with description of the scope of services descriptions.  Any exceptions or exclusions are required to be listed in the proposal and will be considered.  
3. Services Description per RFP Sections 2.0 through 2.9:			    35 Points
Each one of the scope of services sub-sections under the section 2 will need to be clearly explained in the proposal. The proposal shall clearly describe each of the items in subsections 2.0 through 2.9.  The other sections such as section 10, Award of the Contract shall also have information to support the criteria that are listed in the RFP. 
Total Score:									    /100 Points

Comments:
	 

	

	

	



Evaluator Name (Print):                                              . Evaluator Signature:                                            .
Date:                                                .      Recommendation to Award Yes/No:                               
The District may negotiate terms with the District determined “qualified” Firm that provides the “Best Value” and most advantageous proposal for the District. The lowest cost proposer may not be awarded these services, at the full discretion of the District.  District Team evaluation processes will utilize the criteria of this RFP and remain confidential. 



The End.
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